				50000000000000000000000000000000000000	Added in the second sec
Product	ASD	Type/Series	ASDA servo drive	Appl. Note No. 002	ASDA-A2, ASDA-M series
Issued by	DEN	Author	gFAE & modified by Jack Tsai	Released Date	January 21, 2019
Title			Full-Closed Loop	o Implementatio	on

Devices and special tools/equipment

- ✓ Delta ASDA servo drive: ASDA-A2-F, ASDA-M-F, ASDA-A2-E, ASDA-A2-M*
- ✓ ECMA servo motor
- ✓ Host controller (Optional)

*For ASDA-A2-M, special firmware is required if the required operating mode is PR mode (P1-01=1) or Communication mode (P1-01=B, C). For updating the firmware, please contact local Delta partners or Delta offices.

Test setup

- ✓ 1pc ASD-A2-M
- ✓ 1pc ECMA servo motor
- ✓ 1pc external encoder (2500ppr)
- ✓ 1pc ball screw

Contents

1.	INTRODUCTION	3
2.	SETTING UP FULL-CLOSED LOOP SYSTEM	4
	2-1. OPERATING PRINCIPLE	
	2-1-1. PT Full-Closed Loop	
	2-1-2. PR Full-Closed Loop	5
	2-2. PARAMETER CONFIGURATION	6
	2-2-1. Overview	6
	2-2-2. Step 1: Physical Wiring	7
	2-2-3. Step 2: P1-74.Z - Pulse Trend of the Linear Scale	8
	2-2-4. Step 3: P1-72 - Resolution of the Linear Scale	
	2-2-5. Step 4: P1-44, P1-45 - Electronic Gear Ratio	11
	2-2-6. Step 5: P1-73 - Position Error Protection Range	
	2-2-7. Step 6: P1-75 - Low-Pass Filter Time Constant	
	2-2-8. Step 7: DI Assignment for Extra Function	
	2-2-9. Step 8: P1-84 - Position Error Handling Function of Semi/Full-Closed Loops	15
	2-2-10. Step 9: P1-85 - Automatic Position Error Reset Function	
	2-2-11. Step 10: P1-86 - Executed PR# between Switching Semi/Full-Closed Loops	
	2-2-12. Step 11: P2-80 - Source of Z-pulse for homing	
	2-2-13. Step 12: P2-66 - Assisting Register	
	2-2-14. Step 13: P1-46, P1-03 - Output Pulse Number of the linear scale	19
	2-2-15. Step 14: P1-74.X - Full-Closed Loop Function Activation	20
3.	FULL-CLOSED LOOP SYSTEM VERIFICATION	21
	3-1. System Structure	21
	3-2. PARAMETER CONFIGURATION	21
	3-3. MONITORING VARIABLES & PARAMETERS	22
	3-4. TESTING PROCEDURE SETUP	22
	3-5. Scope Data Analysis	

1. Introduction

The ideal mechanism integrated with the servo motor should be able to reflect the actual position of the machine on the motor encoder to achieve accurate positioning. However, due to the reality factors such as the backlash of the ball-screw, flexibility of the coupling or the belt, thermal expansion of the system and the slide of the machinery, the feedback position of the encoder might have apparent deviation from the exact position of the machine.

To improve such situation, the *auxiliary encoder*, also known as the *secondary encoder*, *external encoder* or *linear scale* can be implemented to additionally send the actual position of the machine back to the servo drive to form a full-closed loop and ensure the accuracy of positioning.

As the full-closed loop system shown in Fig.1, besides the main encoder of the servo motor which gives feedback to the servo drive via CN2, the linear scale is connected to CN5 to send the A, B, Z signal of the auxiliary encoder back for position alignment.



Fig.1 – Full-closed loop system

In the following chapters, the procedure of setting up the full-closed loop system will be elaborated, including the wiring, operating principle and the parameter configuration to assist users implementing the function. At last, a simple way to verify the functionality will be explained with an example as well.

2. Setting Up Full-Closed Loop System

2-1. Operating Principle

Based on the operating mode of the servo drive, the full-closed loop function can be categorized to two modes, PT mode & PR mode, as shown in Table 1.

Full-Closed Loop mode	Operating mode
PT mode	PT mode (P1-01=0)
DP modo	PR mode (P1-01=1)
PR mode	Communication mode (Ex: P1-01=C)
Table 1	Madaa af tha full alaaad laan

Table 1 – Modes of the full-closed loop

Overall, the operating principle and the parameters involved is the same for both modes, yet there are differences when it comes to certain configuration, and this will be explained in the following sections. Fig.2 and Fig.3 is the illustration of the operating principle of each mode.

2-1-1. PT Full-Closed Loop



Fig.2 - PT full-closed loop operating principle

2-1-2. PR Full-Closed Loop



Fig.3 - PR Full-closed loop operating principle

2-2. Parameter Configuration

Table 2 lists the setting procedure and the relevant parameters for implementing PT & PR fullclosed loop. **Parameters highlighted in BLUE means** <u>mandatory for the setup</u> while GREEN means <u>optional depending on the user-requirements</u>. Each parameter is explained individually in the following sections. To prevent damaging the mechanism, please make sure the configuration is done properly before activating the system.

2-2-1. Overview

Step	Parameters	Actions	РТ	PR	Remark
1		Conduct the wiring	~	~	Connect the linear scale (A, B, Z) to CN5 to form a full-closed loop.
2	P1-74.Z	Set the pulse trend of the linear scale	√	~	The pulse trend of the linear scale must be the same as that of the main encoder
3	P1-72	Set the resolution of the linear scale	\checkmark	~	
4	P1-44, P1-45 (Optional: P3-13)	Set the electronic gear ratio	~	~	The principle of setting up PT & PR mode is different
5	P1-73	Set the position error protection range	~	~	Set P1-73 as a conservative value when initiating the full- closed loop for the first time to prevent damaging the machine.
6	P1-75	Set the low-pass filter time constant	~	~	
7	(1)DI: <i>0x0B</i> (Level triggered) (2)DI: <i>0x0E</i> (Rising-edge triggered)	Assign DI for extra function (1)Full/semi-closed loop (2)Position error reset	~	~	
8	P1-84	Set the position error handling function of full/semi-closed loops	√	X	The default on PR mode is that the position error will be reset.
9	P1-85	Set the automatic position error reset function	~	~	
10	P1-86	Set the executed PR# between switching full/semi-closed loops	X	~	
11	P2-80	Set the source of Z-pulse for homing	\checkmark	X	
12	P2-66	Set the assisting register	1	\checkmark	
13	P1-46, P1-03	Set the output pulse number of the linear scale	~	~	The setup is only necessary when the application needs to have the servo drive output the feedback from the linear scale
14	P1-74.X	Activate full-closed loop function	\checkmark	\checkmark	

Table 2 - Full-closed loop setup procedure

CN5 on the servo drive is used for the connection between the linear scale and the servo drive. The pin description is shown in Fig.4 as below.



Pin No.	Signal Name	Terminal Symbol	Function and Description
1	/Z phase input	Opt_/Z	Linear scale /Z phase output
2	/B phase input	Opt_/B	Linear scale /B phase output
3	B phase input	Opt_B	Linear scale B phase output
4	A phase input	Opt_A	Linear scale A phase output
5	/A phase input	Opt_/A	Linear scale /A phase output
6	Encoder grounding	GND	Ground
7	Encoder grounding	GND	Ground
8	Encoder power	+5V	Linear scale 5V power
9	Z phase input	Opt_Z	Linear scale Z phase output

Fig.4 – Pin description for CN5 full-closed loop wiring

NOTE

- 1) The highest communication rate is 4Mpps and only the encoder with +5V & AB phase signal is supported.
- 2) Supporting encoders with resolution up to 1280000 pulse/rev (the highest quadruple frequency of the full-closed loop when the motor rotates 1 rev).

2-2-3. Step 2: P1-74.Z - Pulse Trend of the Linear Scale

P1-74 Full-Closed Loop Control of Linear Scale Address: 0194H, 0195H							
Default	1000h	Control mode	Position				
Unit	-	Setting range	0x0000 – 0x4122				
Format	HEX	Data Size	16-bit				
• Z: F	Settings : Settings : Settings : Selection of full-closed loop Selection of OA/OB/OZ output source Positivenegative direction selection of linear scale feedback Filter setting of linear scale Not in use						
0 : Positive trend when A-phase leads B-phase of the linear scale							
1: 1	Negative trend when B-phase le	ads A-phase of t	he linear scale				
	Fig.5 – P	1-74 bit3 definition					

Fig.5 is the definition of **P1-74.Z**. The pulse trend of the main encoder and the linear scale must be the same, whether it's positive or negative trend. Users can refer to below instruction and use *ASDA-Soft* for verification.

- (1) Set P1-72=80000
- (2) Open ASDA-Soft and click the *Status Monitor* icon → Click the *Select Monitor Items* tab → Set the *Mapping Parameters Setting* as highlighted in Fig.6 to monitor the feedback of the main encoder and the linear scale, then click *Change*.



Fig.6 - Settings+ to monitor the feedback of the main encoder and the linear scale

- (3) Open the scope, set CH1 and CH2 as [PAR]Parameters and tick the box in front of the 32 bit to monitor P0-25 & P0-26.
- (4) Without activating the full-closed loop, servo ON the drive, use JOG function to move the motor slowly towards one direction and make sure there will be no collision, then monitor the scope. If the waveform is like Fig.7 or Fig.8, it means the pulse trend of both encoders is the same and it's correct, then there's no need to adjust P1-74.Z.



Fig.7 – Same pulse trend (positive)



Fig.8 – Same pulse trend (negative)

However, if the waveform is like Fig.9, it means the pulse trend is different which is wrong. In that case, set P1-74.Z=1 to reverse the direction of the feedback to fix the problem.



Fig.9 – Different pulse trend

2-2-4. Step 3: P1-72 - Resolution of the Linear Scale

P1-72	Resolution of the Linear Sca	Address: 0190H, 0191H					
Default	1000h	Control mode	Position				
Unit	-	Setting range	200 – 1280000				
Format	DEC	Data Size	32-bit				
Settings: Numbers of <i>I</i>	Settings: Numbers of A/B pulses of the full-closed loop when motor runs a cycle (after quadruple frequency)						

Fig.10 – P1-72 definition

As defined in Fig.10, **P1-72** is the resolution of the linear scale corresponding to 1 cycle of the motor. The proper value can be calculated either *from the specification* or *from the data monitored with ASDA-Soft scope* as explained below.

Option 1: From the specification

If the specification of the mechanism is known or it's a ball-screw application, P1-72 can be calculated as shown in Fig.11, which is 10000 in this example.



Fig.11 - P1-72 calculation from the specification

Option 2: From the data monitored with ASDA-Soft scope

If the mechanism specification is unknown, complicated, or not a ball-screw, P1-72 can be defined with the help of the scope data. How to conduct the measurement differs between PT mode and PR mode, each case is explained below.

(1) PT mode

Set P1-44=1 and P1-45=1 to have 1280000 PUU for 1 rev of the motor. Use the host controller to send commands to move the motor slowly for a long distance without any collision, then read the data from the scope. As Fig.13 shows, when the motor moves 2528000 PUU, the linear scale returns 19750 pulses. Therefore, with the formula shown in Fig.12, we can get P1-72=10000.



Fig.12 – P1-72 calculation with the scope on PT mode

(2) PR mode

Set P1-44=1 and P1-45=1 to have 1280000 PUU for 1 rev of the motor. Use this value as basis, write a simple PR command as shown in Fig.13. As the scope indicates, when the motor runs a cycle (1280000 PUU), the linear scale returns 10000 pulses, so P1-72=10000.



Fig.13 – P1-72 calculation with the scope on PR mode

P1-44	Gear Ratio (Numera	ator) (N1)		Address: 0158H, 0159H
Default	1		Control mode	Position
Unit	Pulse		Setting range	$1 - (2^{29} - 1)$
Format	DEC		Data Size	32-bit
P1-45	Gear Ratio (Denom	inator) (M)	Address: 015AH, 015BH
Default	1		Control mode	Position
Unit	Pulse		Setting range	$1 - (2^{31} - 1)$
Format	DEC		Data Size	32-bit
Settings: f the setting i Гhe setting o I/50 < N/M <	s inappropriate, there's po pulse input is as below fo 25600 Puls inpu	otential risk th formula, and th it M	hat the motor might ne recommended r Position command f2 = f	have sudden and unintended acceleration ange of command pulse input is $1 \times \frac{N}{M}$

2-2-5. Step 4: P1-44, P1-45 - Electronic Gear Ratio

Fig.14 – P1-44 & P1-45 definition

Fig.14 is the definition of **P1-44 & P1-45** which compose the electronic gear ratio. How to define an appropriate electronic gear ratio for PT&PR mode full-closed loop is different due to the principle of scaling command/feedback is not the same, and each will be explained below.

(1) PT mode

If it's PT full-closed loop, the electronic gear ratio will scale the system command according to P1-72 instead of its original reference from the main encoder. Fig.15 shows the formula of the E-gear ratio N/M.



Fig.15 – The conversion between the input-pulses and the output-position-command

In most of the cases *P1-44/P1-45=1/1* but it's also plausible to set another value. For instance, if P1-44/P1-45=1/1 and P1-72=5000, the motor will rotate 1 rev when the servo drive receives 5000 pulses. But if the value is changed to P1-44/P1-45=2/1, then only 2500 pulses is required to drive the motor to rotate 1 rev.

(2) PR mode

On PR mode, the electronic gear ratio is always referring to the main encoder, which is different from PT mode. As shown in Fig.16, the unit of the feedback resolution is 1280000 pulse/rev, so it is recommended to set the electronic gear ratio as the value to have required pulses for 1 motor rev = $P1-72^*$.



Fig.16 – Command scaling mechanism on PR mode

For example, if P1-72=10000, P1-44/P1-45=128/1 will be an appropriate setting because 10000 pulses is required for 1 motor rev, and it is the same as P1-72. With this configuration, assuming one pulse equals to 0.05mm and the user wants to have the motor move 500mm, simply sending a command of 10000 PUU will do (0.05*10000=500).

On the other hand, in this example, if the user wants to scale up the resolution to have the motor travel twice as much as the original distance of 1 pulse, just multiply P1-44 by 2 to have P1-44/P1-45=256/1, then the requirement can be met.

NOTE If PR full-closed loop is used but the users want to set P1-44/P1-45=1/1 to have a straightforward reference with the pulse command from the host-controller, it's necessary to adjust **P3-13.X** to change the position feedback which the servo drive is referring to. Fig.17 is the definition of P3-13, users can set it to **1** to fix the feedback always as the linear scale,

or set it to 2 to let the servo determine the reference source automatically based on full/semi-

closed loops.

P3-13	PR/DMCNET Full-Closed Loc Setting	op Feedback		Address: 031AH, 031BH			
Default	0x0000	Control mode	Posit	tion			
Unit	-	Setting range	0x00	00 – 0x0022			
Format	HEX	Data Size	32-bi	it			
Settings:							
X: monit 0: motor 1: linear 2: motor loop mo	UZYX X: monitoring variable: 00 (encoder feedback setting (user-defined unit)) 0: motor feedback pulse number 1: linear scale feedback pulse number 2: motor feedback pulse number in semi-closed loop mode; linear scale feedback pulse number in full-closed loop mode						



P1-73	Position Error Protection Ra	Address: 0192H, 0193H	
Default	30000	Control mode	Position
Unit	Pulse(based on the feedback of full-closed loop)*2	Setting range	1 – (2 ³¹ -1)
Format	DEC	Data Size	32-bit

2-2-6. Step 5: P1-73 - Position Error Protection Range

Fig.18 – P1-73 definition

When there's backlash or mechanical slide happening in the machinery, it will result in deviation between the position feedback of the motor and the actual position of the machine. If there's excessive position deviation, it might indicate the coupling is loose or the mechanism is not integrated properly, then the servo drive will show AL040 for warning. **P1-73** as shown in Fig.18 allows users to define the tolerance of the deviation before triggering AL040.

NOTE1 To prevent potential mechanism collision due to the disconnection of the linear scale or the wrong pulse trend, we highly recommend setting P1-73 as a conservative value when initiating the full-closed loop the first time. After making sure the machine works properly, users can adjust the value according to the real application.

To setup P1-73, first let the machine run for 1 complete cycle and use the scope of ASDA-Soft to monitor *monitoring variable 31* to check the maximum deviation, then set the value into P1-73 with a reasonable tolerance as a threshold based on the specification of the actual mechanism.

NOTE2 If P1-72, P1-44 and P1-45 are set correctly, P1-73 could be directly referred to the PUU unit without conversion which will be very straightforward for monitoring and verification, therefore please make sure the previous three parameters are set properly.

2-2-7. Step 6: P1-75 - Low-Pass Filter Time Constant

P1-75	Low-Pass Filter Time Consta Closed Loop	Address: 0196H, 0197H		
Default	100	Control mode	Pos	sition
Unit	ms	Setting range	0 –	1000
Format	DEC	Data Size	16-	bit

Fig.19 – P1-75 definition

P1-75 as Fig.19 shows allows users to set the low-pass filter time constant. If the stiffness of the mechanical system is not enough, applying the time constant can enhance the stability of the system by having the semi-closed loop effect in the transient-state while having the full-closed loop effect in the steady-state. On the other hand, P1-75 can be set to 0 to disable the function if the mechanical system is stiff enough.

To be brief, if the stiffness of the system is high, decrease the value of P1-75 or set it to 0 to disable the function; if the stiffness of the system is low, increase the value of P1-75.

2-2-8. Step 7: DI Assignment for Extra Function

In case the application required switching between semi/full-closed loops, users can assign two DIs to manage it.

(1) DI: 0x0B

Symbol Eunction (DL) Tr		
	rigger	Operating Mode
Switching between semi/full-closed loops[*] FHS 0: Full-closed loop 1: Semi-closed loop	evel	PT/PR Full-closed loop

NOTE To enable this DI, **P1-77** needs to be set depending on different models as shown below.

Model Name	Remark
A2 M	PT mode: P1-77=1
AZ-IVI	PR mode: No need to set P1-77
A2-E	No need to set P1-77
A2-F	No need to set P1-77

(2) DI: 0x0E

Definition:0x0E								
Symbol	Function (DI)	Trigger	Operating Mode					
FEC	Clear the position deviation between the main encoder and the linear scale	Rising-edge	PT/PR Full-closed loop					

P1-84	Position error handling funct closed loop	Address: 01A8H, 01A9H				
Default	0x0000	Control mode	PT			
Unit	-	Setting range	0 –	1		
Format	HEX	Data Size	16-bit			

Fig.20 – P1-84 definition

While switching from full-closed loop to semi-closed loop, the position error will accumulate fast if the motor is still rotating. After the mode is switched back, the motor will try to compensate the deviation and eventually lead to a "jump". To prevent such scenario, users can configure **P1-84** shown in Fig.20 to define how the position error should be processed.

(1) P1-84=0

When using *DI:0x0B* to switch between semi/full-closed loops, the position error will be cleared every time it's switched. Under semi-closed loop, the command refers to the main encoder instead of the linear scale, so the motor won't have sudden movement to align with the feedback position of the linear scale.



(2) P1-84=1

The position error won't be cleared when using *DI:0x0B* to switch between semi/full-closed loops. Under semi-closed loop, the command refers to the main encoder and when it's switched back to full-closed loop, the command given in semi-closed loop will be converted to the full-closed loop command, so the motor will have further movement to compensate the deviation.



command with reference to CN5.

2-2-10. Step 9: P1-85 - Automatic Position Error Reset Function



Fig.21 – P1-85 definition

If there's mechanical-slide in the application such as the steel-plate cutting and wire feeding system which uses the friction for actuating, inevitably the position deviation between the main encoder and the linear scale will accumulate and eventually triggers AL040. In that case, users can set **P1-85** to automatically clear the position deviation within the tolerance.

NOTE Resetting the position deviation will not affect the accuracy of the positioning

2-2-11. Step 10: P1-86 - Executed PR# between Switching Semi/Full-Closed Loops



If the application required to execute certain PR# while switching between full/semi-closed loop, **P1-86** shown in Fig.22 can be utilized.

2-2-12. Step 11: P2-80 - Source of Z-pulse for homing



Fig.23 – P2-80 definition

Fig.23 states the definition of **P2-80**. Due to the Z-pulse alignment function shares the same control mechanism with the built-in CAPTURE function, taking the conversion of the coordinate after homing into consideration, P5-39.X.bit0 will be set to 0 automatically to disable the CAPTURE function and will remain the status after homing is completed. After that, the coordinate of the main encoder and the linear scale will be aligned. During the homing process, the software limits will be temporarily disabled.

2-2-13. Step 12: P2-66 - Assisting Register

	P2-66	As	Assisting Register						Address: 02A0H, 02A1H		
	Defaul	t Ox0	0000		Control mode ALI			ntrol mo	ALL		
	Unit	-					Set	ting rar	nge	0x0000 – 0x183F	
	Forma	t HE	X				D	ata Siz	e	16-bit	
Se	ettings	:									
	B7	B6	B5	B4	B3	B2	B1	B0			
_	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			
_	• E	35(bit5 closed	5): Enal	ble dis ontrol	sconneo functio	ction de	etection abled)	n of the	e line	ear scale (Effective only when the fu	-IIL
	(): Dete	ection is	s disa	bled an	d AL04	11 won	i't occu	r		
	-	I: Dete	ection is	s enat	oled an	d AL04	1 will o	occur			
	AL041: Communication breakdown of the linear scale										
		Caus	ses		Checking Method		Corrective Actions				
	Commo of the l	unicatior inear sca	n breakdo ale	own C se	heck the cale.	e comm	unicatio	on of line	ear	Check the communication of linear scale again.	

Fig.24 – P2-66 definition

It's crucial to monitor the connection between the linear scale and the servo drive because if it's disconnected, the machine might collide due to the sudden acceleration of the motor. **P2-66** as

shown in Fig.24 provides the function to detect whether the linear scale is connected or not. When P2-66.bit5 is enabled and the connection breaks down, AL041 will appear to indicate the problem. **NOTE** The default value is 0 for P2-66.bit5, so it's strongly recommended to enable this function before enabling the full-closed loop!

2-2-14. Step 13: P1-46, P1-03 - Output Pulse Number of the linear scale

P1-46	Pulse Num	Address: 015CH, 01	5DH					
Default	2500		Control mode ALL		ALL			
Unit	Pulse		Setting rar	nge 🛛	20 – 320000			
Format	DEC		Data Siz	e :	32-bit			
Settings: TI	he number	of the single-phase	pulse output	t per r	evolution			
NOTE The for output pulse	NOTE The following circumstances may result in AL018 due to exceeding the maximum allowable output pulse frequency of the drive							
AL018 : Ab	normal Signa	al Output						
Cau	uses	Checking Me	thod		Corrective Actions			
The encoder and cause th signal outpu	The encoder is in error and cause the abnormal signal output Check the fault records 05). See if the alarm ex encoder error (AL011, 7 AL025, AL026)		s (P4-00~P4- kists with the AL024,	Condu AL.01	ct the corrective actions of I, AL.024, AL.025, AL.026			
The output pulse exceeds the hardware allowable range. The output pulse $P1-76 < Motor Speed$ $Motor Speed$ $exceeds the hardware hardwar$		conditions or > 19.8 × 10 ⁶	Correc P1-46 P1-76 Motor S 60	tly set parameter P1-76 and > Motor Speed or Speed × P1-46×4<19.8×10 ⁶				

Fig.25 – P1-46 definition

	P1-03	Polarity Setting of the Encoder Pulse Output					Address	: 0106H, 0107H
	Default	0x0000		Control	mode	ALL		
	Unit	-		Setting	range	0x0	000 – 0x0	013
	Format	HEX		Data	Size	16-b	oit	
•	 Polarity of monitor analog output Polarity of encoder pulse output Polarity of monitor analog output Polarity of monitor analog output Polarity of encoder pulse output 							
	0: MON1(+), MON2(+)	2: MON1(-), MON2(+)		0: Forwa	ard outp	out	1: Reverse output
	1: MON1(+), MON2(-)	3: MON1(-), MON2(-)					

Fig.26 – P1-03 definition

If the application requires to have the linear scale feedback be output from the servo drive, users can configure **P1-46 & P1-03** in Fig.25 & Fig.26.

P1-46 is for setting up the number of the single-phase pulse output per revolution, what worth mentioning is that inappropriate settings might results in AL018, so users need to be cautious when defining the value. As for P1-03, it can be used to determine the polarity of the encoder output pulse.

2-2-15. Step 14: P1-74.X - Full-Closed Loop Function Activation

P1-74 Full-Closed Loop Control of	Linear Scale	Address: 0194H, 0195H
Default 0x0000	Control mode	ALL
Unit Pulse	Setting range	0x0000 – 0x4122
Settings:	full-closed loop of OA/OB/OZ output source gative direction selection of linear ack ing of linear scale	
• X: Switch of the full-closed loop co	ontrol	
0: Function of full-closed loop is d	isabled	
1: Function of full-closed loop is e	nabled	
2: Activate the synchronous detec	tion	
• Y: Source of OA/OB/OZ output:		
0: Main encoder		
1: Linear scale		
2: CN1 pulse command		
• Z: Positive / Negative direction sel	ection of linear s	cale feedback:
0: Positive direction when A-phase	e leads B-phase o	of the linear scale
1: Negative direction when B-phas	e leads A-phase	of the linear scale
• U: Filter setting of the linear scale	:	
0: Bypass		
1: 20 MHz		
2: 10 MHz		
3: 6.66 MHz		
4: 1.66 MHz		
5: 833 KHz		
6: 416 KHz		

Fig.27 – P1-74 definition

After finishing the configuration of the parameters in the previous sections, set **P1-74.bit1=1** to activate the full-closed loop function. Besides P1-74.bit1, users can configure other bits of P1-74 shown in Fig.27 depending on the actual requirements.

3. Full-Closed Loop System Verification

In this section, an example with the basic full-closed loop function setup will be introduced, along with the related parameter configuration, applicable monitoring variables, parameters and the scope data analysis.

3-1. System Structure

Fig.28 is the illustration of the system structure of this example. The system is composed of 1pc ASDA-A2-M, 1pc ECMA servo motor, 1pc auxiliary encoder with 2500ppr resolution to represent the linear scale and a ball-screw connecting the ECMA servo motor and the auxiliary encoder. The feedback of the main encoder from the ECMA servo motor is going back to the servo drive via CN2, while the feedback of the auxiliary encoder goes back via CN5.



Fig.28 - Full-Closed Loop testing environment

Parameters	Value	Definition			
P1-01	0x0001	$X \rightarrow$ Set the operating mode as PR mode			
P1-72	10000	Resolution of a 2500ppr auxiliary encoder (after quadruple)			
P1-44	128	Numerator of the gear ratio (N)			
P1-45	1	Denominator of the gear ratio (M)			
P1-73	100	100 pulses as the threshold of the position error between two encoders			
P1-74	0x0101	 X → Activate the full-closed loop function Z → Change the direction of the auxiliary encoder feedback* 			

3-2. Parameter Configuration

NOTE As stated in 2-2-3, it's not mandatory to set P1-74.Z=1 but depending on the actual scenario.

3-3. Monitoring Variables & Parameters

In order to verify if the full-closed loop system is working properly, users can monitor the variables or the parameters listed below in Table 3 with ASDA-Soft to verify the system.

Name of variables	P	UU	Pulse		
	Variables	Parameters	Variables	Parameters	
Main encoder feedback position (CN2)	000 (00h)	P5-16	003 (03h)	P5-18	
Auxiliary encoder feedback position (CN5)	029 (1Dh)	NA	048 (30h)	P5-17	
Position error between the main & auxiliary	031 (1Eb)	NΔ	ΝΔ	ΝΔ	
encoder (CN2 & CN5)	001 (111)	NA			
Auxiliary encoder position error (CN5)	030 (1Eh)	NA	NA	NA	
Deviation between the Z-phase and the position of the auxiliary encoder (CN5)	116 (74h)	NA	NA	NA	

Table 3 – Monitoring variables and parameters for the full-closed loop

3-4. Testing Procedure Setup

The test is conducted step by step to verify the points below.

- (1) The configuration of the full-closed loop is proper and correct
- (2) Making sure P1-73 can properly trigger AL040 to prevent mechanical failure
- 1. Three PR commands are programmed as below in Fig.29 to move the motor back and forth repeatedly in order to check if the feedback of the auxiliary encoder is following the main encoder or not.

PR #51	(3), Position DLY=100, S=50rpm 5000PUU, ABS	PR #52 (3), Position DLY=200, S=50rpm -5000PUU, ABS			PR #53 (7), Jump DLY=0 PR#51		
PR#	Command		Delay (ms)	Speed (rp	om)	Position (PUU)
51	Auto position control then goes to next	t PR#	100	50		5000	
52	Auto position control then goes to next	t PR#	200	50		-5000)
53	Jump to assigned PR#		0	NA		NA	

Fig 29 – PR commands definition

 In order to verify if AL040 will be triggered when the position error exceeds P1-73, *DO:0x07 Servo warning* is used to indicate the timing when it's triggered. DO settings in this example is shown in Fig.30.

<pre> % Digital Output(DO) </pre>	Enable DO Control
DO1:[0x01]Servo ready	
DO2:[0x03]Motor is at zero spe	ed
DO3:[0x07]Servo warning	
DO4:[0x05]Target position com	pleted
DO5:[0x07]Servo warning (B)	

Fig.30 – DO settings

3. Set the data on each channel of the scope of ASDA-Soft as shown in Fig.31 for monitoring.

CH1 [PAR]	Parar ~ 32 bit 5 ~ - 16 ~ -1470 -1470	CH2 [VAR] Varial 32 bit 29 (0~127) Data : -1534 Rel. val. : -1534	CH3 [VAR] Varial ~ 32 bit 31 (0~127) Rel. val. : 64	○ CH4 [IDX] Norma 32 bit DO Status ✓ ■ Data : 25 Rel. val. : 25 L F E D C B A 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1 0		
Channel	Sampling Range	Data	Definition			
CH1	16-bit*	[PAR]Parameters: P5-16	Main encoder feed	back position (PUU)		
CH2	16-bit*	[VAR]Variables: 29	Auxiliary encoder fee	dback position (PUU)		
СНЗ	16-bit	[VAR]Variables: 31	Position error between the main encoder and the auxiliary encoder = CH1-CH2 (PUU)			
CH4	16-bit	[IDX]Normal: DO Status	DO Status			

Fig.31 – Scope channel configuration

4. Trigger PR#51 to start the cyclic movement and record the waveform. The result is shown in Fig.32 while the section of each PR# is remarked in red and yellow.



Fig.32 – Monitored scope data

NOTE Generally it is recommended to use 32-bit to monitor the position command, however due to the limitation of the channel numbers, the test is conducted with the command which can be fully shown in 16-bit to ensure the data correctness.

3-5. Scope Data Analysis

By analysing the scope data, each point could be verified as below.

(1) The configuration of the full-closed loop is proper and correct

If the configuration is proper, the feedback position of the auxiliary encoder will be the same as or proportional to the main encoder, depending on either the E-gear ratio or is there any gearbox. In this example, since there's no gearboxes and the E-gear ratio is set to <u>map 1 rev of the auxiliary</u> <u>encoder to 1rev of the main encoder</u>, therefore the feedback of both encoders will almost the same just with very little deviation, which is shown in Fig.33, so it can be confirmed that the configuration is appropriate.



Fig.33 - Zoomed-in view of the scope data

(2) Making sure P1-73 can properly trigger AL040 to prevent mechanical failure

As stated in 2-2-6, if P1-72, P1-44 and P1-45 are configured properly, the value of P1-73 could be directly referred to the PUU unit without additional conversion. In other words, AL040 will be triggered when *[VAR]Variables:31* in CH3 reaches the value of P1-73. During the test, when the position error reaches 100, which is P1-73 in this example, AL040 is triggered and DO3 outputs the signal for indication as shown in Fig.34 and Fig.35, therefore the motor stops immediately. With this verification, it can be confirmed that P1-73 is valid and functions normally.



Fig.34 – The timing when AL040 is triggered



Fig.35 – Zoomed-in view of the timing when AL040 is triggered